# Bylaws of the Portland Ice Skating Club, Inc.

Approved by PISC Board 4.24.2024

Approved by Membership 5.07.2024

# **Article 1 - Name and Organization**

Sec. 1. This organization shall be known as the Portland Ice Skating Club, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the Club.

Sec. 2. The Club was incorporated under the laws of the State of Oregon, February 1939.

### **Article II - Purpose**

Sec. 1. The purpose of the Club is to improve, encourage, and advance figure skating in all its branches and carry out the general policies of the United States Figure Skating hereinafter referred to as the U.S. Figure Skating in accordance with the Bylaws of this Club. The Bylaws and Rules of the U.S. Figure Skating shall have precedence. The Bylaws shall be updated and submitted to U.S. Figure Skating annually.

This corporation is organized exclusively for educational and charitable purposes within the meaning of section 501 (c)3 of the Internal Revenue Code. Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from Federal income tax under section 501 (c)3 of the Internal Revenue code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law), or (b) by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)2 of the Internal Revenue code of 1954 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law.

#### Article III - Governance

- Sec. 1. The Officers shall be President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be combined. Officers must be at least 18 years of age and full members of the Club.
- Sec. 2. The **President** shall preside at all meetings of the Club and be chair of the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the Board). The President shall have the power to suspend any member of violating the Bylaws or regulations of the Club, subject to approval of the Board. The President shall be a member ex-officio of all committees together with the Secretary. The President may appoint a Parliamentarian if deemed appropriate.
- Sec. 3. The **Vice President** shall assist the President in the discharge of the President's duties and in the President's absence shall assume the President's duties and officiate in the President's stead.
- Sec. 4. The **Treasurer** shall have charge of the funds of the Club and shall keep a record of all receipts and disbursements and shall render a written report when requested by the President or

any Board member. Disbursements for any amount over \$500 shall be made only upon approval of the Board. Club funds shall be by check or direct deposit and shall be signed by the Treasurer or the President, or by one other officer or Board member designated by the Board. For any checks over the amount of \$500, two signatures are required. One of the two signatures must be an officer of the Board. Electronic transfers or payments may be made in lieu of checks with approval of the Treasurer and the President.

- Sec. 4.1. Both the President and/or the Treasurer shall sign all agreements and contracts made by the Club after approval of the Board. A copy of said contract will be provided to the appropriate committee chair
- Sec. 5. The **Secretary** shall keep minutes of the Club and Board, supervise all reports and documents connected with the business of the Club, supervise Club correspondence, and prepare and issue notices of all meetings of the Club and Board. The Secretary shall coordinate with U.S. Figure Skating to update records at the beginning of the Club year on July 1, annually.
- Sec. 6. The Officers shall be elected by the Board-elect at the first meeting following the Spring meeting of the Club and shall hold office for one year or until their successors are elected. An officer need not be a member of the Board but must be a Club member. An officer not elected to the Board shall become a member of the Board ex-officio with the right to take part in all Board meetings but without the right to vote.
- Sec. 6.1. An Assistant Secretary and/or Assistant Treasurer, either from the Club or outside the Club, may be appointed by the Board on such terms as they consider advisable.
- Sec. 7. The **Board of Directors** shall consist of nine (9) elected full members of the Club. The immediate past president shall be an ex-officio non-voting member of the Board, unless a current or appointed Board member. A minimum number of one (1) and a maximum of two (2) coaches) shall hold the Board of Directors position at any given time and may hold the positions of Vice President or Secretary.
- Sec. 7.1. Directors shall be elected by the members of the Club eligible to vote each year at the Spring Membership Meeting. They will take office at the next Board meeting, which must be held within 30 days. They will be elected for a period of two or three years. Board members may be elected for three consecutive terms. One year shall lapse before they are eligible for re-election. Four Directors will be elected in odd-numbered years and five Directors will be elected in even-numbered years
- Sec. 7.2. Candidates for the Board shall be selected by a Nominating Committee elected by the Board and by nomination from the floor in regular or special meetings of the Club. Candidates must have given prior approval to be nominated.
- Sec. 7.3. If a Directorship becomes vacant, the Board shall appoint a Club member as a Governor to serve until the next meeting of the Club at which time a Governor shall be elected for the unexpired term, if any.
- Sec. 7.4. Meetings of the Board shall be called once a month with a minimum of eight meetings

- per year being held. If a Board member misses more than two consecutive regular meetings without a valid excuse, the Board member shall be in violation of the Bylaws of the Club.
- Sec. 7.5. Five (5) Board members may call a Board meeting upon written notice that includes, but not limited to emails to all members of the Board, including ex-officio members, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting. The notice shall state the date of the meeting, purpose for which the meeting is called and the names of the four members requesting the meeting. The meeting can be virtual.
- Sec. 7.6. Four (4) members of the Board shall constitute a quorum. The call-in option will be available to Board members upon approval of the President and one other officer.
- Sec. 8. The Board shall make such rules as they deem proper in respect to the use of Club property, prescribe rules for the admission of non-members to Club activities, fix penalties for offenses against the rules and make rules for their own government and for government of appointed committees.
- Sec. 8.1. Appropriations from the Club funds shall be made to Officers and Committee Chairs as deemed necessary by the majority of the Board.
- Sec. 8.2. Accounting expenditures of the Officers and Committee Chairs shall be made quarterly to the Board. The first accounting shall be made in September of the new fiscal year which starts July 1.
- Sec. 8.3. Annual inspection of all financial records shall be made by the Board or their authorized delegate.
- Sec. 8.4. The Board may suspend or expel any member in violation of the Bylaws of the Club or the U.S. Figure Skating, only after a hearing and approval by the Board.
- Sec. 9. Committee Chairs shall be appointed by the President, for one-year terms, unless otherwise stated herein. Standing Committees shall be:
- Sec. 9.1. **Public & Media Relations Committee Chair** shall be appointed from the active membership of the Club. The Chair will be responsible for news releases, social media and the Portland Ice Skating Club website (pisc.org) which include the activities of the Club and its members in the sport of figure skating. The chair will maintain good relations with the press and other media of communications, and will act as liaison between rink, professionals, the Club and United Figure Skating, in matters concerning public relations and media.
- Sec. 9.2. **Test Committee Chair** and assistant to the Test Chair shall be appointed by the Board of Directors of the Club. The Chair shall be in complete charge of contacting approved U.S. Figure Skating judges and selecting a time-and place for the tests. The Test Chair shall be responsible for carrying out the Test program for the U.S. Figure Skating Test, maintaining a perpetual trial-judging program to ensure the availability of an adequate number of judges, supervising tests, maintaining records and making reports as required by the Rules of the U.S. Figure Skating. Per rules by United States Figure Skating, tests may be held virtually if preferred by the Test Chair.

Sec. 9.3 **Sanctions and Eligibility Chair** and an Assistant Chair, if desired, shall be appointed from the active membership of the Club. The Chair shall be familiar with the rules of U.S. Figure Skating concerning the requirements for sanctions for activities in which Club members participate. Also, for activities that the Club sponsors or participates in. The Chair shall obtain necessary sanctions for the Club. In addition, the Chair shall serve as liaison to obtain information concerning sanctions for member skaters and their coaches if requested to do so.

The Chair shall inform the President or the Vice President of any information that comes to the attention of the Chair that may impact the eligibility of a member to skate, test or officiate. The Chair shall serve as liaison with U.S. Figure Skating to confirm the eligibility status of any Club member. The chair shall also confirm the eligibility of any participant in a Club activity when requested to do so by the Club member, a Club officer, the Chair of an event, the appropriate officer of another U.S. Figure Skating Club (for PISC member participants in the other Club's activities only), the Oregon Skating Council, or, a judge, referee or other U.S. Figure Skating official making appropriate inquiry. The Chair may delegate the duties of the Chair to the assistant if one is appointed. In case of a vacancy in this position, the President or a person designated by the President may perform the duties of this office.

- Sec. 9.4. **Membership Committee Chair** shall be appointed by the Board and shall be responsible for the receiving and processing of membership applications and to maintain a current membership list. They will send out email blasts to the entire membership to provide pertinent information—as deemed necessary. The chair shall also establish a committee to review the new membership fee structure for the next membership year. The proposed membership fee structure shall be approved by the Board June 1 of each year. The membership chair shall track PISC skater's competitions and will coordinate with the Public & Media Relations Chair.
- Sec. 9.5. **Fundraising Committee Chair** shall be appointed by the Board of Directors and shall initiate and coordinate all Club fundraising activities.
- Sec. 9.6 **The Junior Board** will include PISC members between the ages of thirteen (13) and twenty (20). There will be two (2) Junior Board advisors at all times, and they must pass a background check and be SafeSkate compliant. The mission of the Junior Board is to strengthen the community of current and prospective club members, promote involvement in club event events and raise public awareness of figure skating in the Portland area and beyond.

Junior Board members must be full members of PISC. The term of the Junior Board members in one (1) year. Junior Board members may serve 4 consecutive terms if they reapply to stay on the Board.

Sec. 9.7 **SafeSport Chair** is responsible for overseeing, drafting and implementing Club policies and best practices based upon minimum requirements and recommendations of US Figure Skating's SkateSafe Program. The chair shall verify that all Club members eighteen (18) and older are SkateSafe compliant. The chair shall report to the US Figure Skating Skate Safe program. The chair shall verify all club participants and volunteers eighteen (18) and older are required to be SkateSafe compliant.

Sec. 9.8 Competition Committee Chair shall lead the organization and planning of the

annual competition, Ice Crystal Classic. The chair coordinate all of the activities of the Ice Crystal Classic committee.

Sec. 9.9 PISC/Mountain View Skating Academy (MVSA) Coaches Joint Committee Chair shall be a PISC member coach. They do not need to be a member of the PISC Board of Directors. It shall be a joint committee with PISC and MVSA`members represented. The committee will support joint MVSA and PISC events: such as Exhibitions, Judge Evaluations, ICC Competition, Coach Seminar, Parent/Skater Education, Aspire program.

Sec. 9.10 **Strategic Plan Committee Chair** shall be appointed by the President and shall lead the effort to update and implement the PISC Board Strategic Plan. The plan will be updated annually which will include a membership survey in December. The Strategic Plan includes the Mission, Vision, and Values.

Sec. 9.11 **Bylaws Committee Chair** shall be appointed by the President to review and update if needed. The PISC Board first votes on changes to the Bylaws. Then the Bylaws changes which are reviewed by the Membership for approval.

### **Article IV - Membership**

Sec. 1 Membership classes of the Club shall include but is not limited to Full, Additional Family Member, Aspire, Introductory, Parent, Official, Collegiate, Coach, Friend of PISC, Adult Full, Honorary pro-tempore, and Life honorary. The Board of Directors, approves members' dues each year and amends the dues as needed annually.

# Sec. 2. Full membership status shall be open to public and persons who:

- a) are current in payment of the Club's annual dues; and b) designate the Club as their home club in accordance with the rules of the U.S. Figure Skating; and
- c) either designate their legal residence within the State of Oregon or Clark County, Washington, or provide a statement they will be training in the Portland Metro area unless they have been a member in good standing for five (5) years before training outside of the Portland Metro area.

### Sec.2.2 **Official membership** status is open to any person who:

- a) Holds an active appointment as a U.S. Figure Skating official (judge, accountant, referee, technical panel member, ice technician, announcer, music/sound technician or similar classification), or is undertaking training for such a position, and
- b) designated Portland Ice Skating Club as their "home club", and
- c) is eligible to perform the duties of an official according to the rules of U.S. Figure Skating, and d) has no unpaid financial obligations to the Club.

This class of member shall have dues at a reduced rate as set by the Board of Directors and such other benefits as the Board of Directors shall approve. Members in this class shall be eligible to vote, if otherwise qualified, and may hold any Club office. Members in this class shall not be eligible for scholarships provided for in Article V and shall pay fees to participate in Club activities at the same rate as Associate members unless provided otherwise by resolution of the Board on an

activity-by-activity basis.

A member of this class may upgrade to full member at any time during the skating year by paying the difference in dues between full member and official member. If a membership is upgraded, the official member shall be considered to be a full member from the date on which he or she was enrolled as an official member for the purpose of qualifying for the benefits of full membership, however, those benefits of full membership will be available only for tests taken or activities occurring after the date of the upgrade

- 2.2 **Aspire Membership** will be offered to new members for a period of three years maximum. The Aspire membership category provides a bridge between Learn to Skate and Introductory membership category. The Aspire member shall be allowed to take the first level of tests including (add language from USFS here per 2023 Governing Council)
- Sec 2.3 **Introductory Membership** will be offered to new members and would include access to club ice and activities to be determined by the Board with a new membership year. Introductory memberships are for a maximum of two (2) years. Consult current membership forms for pricing information.
- Sec. 2.4 **Honorary Members Pro-Tempore** may be designated by vote of the membership of the Club at the Spring or Fall Meeting or by special ballot. Honorary Members Pro-Tempore shall have the benefits of an Official member of the club with payment of dues for the period of membership. Provided however that an Honorary Member Pro-Tempore may vote, hold Club office, and shall designate the Club as their "home club" for the purpose of competition or testing unless he or she is a full member of another U.S. Figure Skating Club that he or she has designated as "home club".
- Sec. 2.5 **Parent/Guardian Membership** is required for skaters under the age of eighteen (18) . Consult current membership forms for pricing information.
- Sec. 2.6 **Collegiate Membership** will be offered to each member attending a 4-year college/university and would include access to club ice and activities for a nominal fee to be determined by the board with a new membership year with voting privileges. Consult current membership forms for pricing information.
- Sec. 2.7 Adult Full Membership shall be for members eighteen (18) years or older.
- Sec 2.8 **Friend of PISC** Membership will be offered to each member and includes access to Club ice activities for a nominal fee to be determined by the board with a new membership year with voting privileges. Consult current membership for pricing information.
- Sec. 3. Application for membership must be addressed, amateur submitted by the candidates and must state his/her name, status and include an agreement to comply with the Bylaws of the U. S. Figure Skating and the Club. An application for full membership must designate the Club as the person's designated U. S. Figure Skating home club. All applications shall be sent to the Membership Chair of the Club. Any applicant whose amateur status is in question shall be referred to the Amateur Status Committee for clarification.

- Sec. 4. The membership year dates shall be established by U.S. Figure Skating.
- Sec. 5. Arrears for dues will be sufficient reason for a member to be dropped from the Club rolls. No full member in arrears for dues may hold office, be entitled to vote, or enter any test or competition in the name of the Club.
- Sec. 6. **Life Honorary Members** may be elected at any meeting of the Club after recommendations by the Board
- Sec 6.1. A Life Honorary Member shall be free from initiation fees, dues, and assessments. They shall have the right to vote as a full member. An Honorary Life Member may designate the Club as "home club" and represent the Club in U.S. Figure Skating sanctioned activities if otherwise eligible. A member in this class shall not be eligible for the reimbursement of test fees or competition entry fees but may attend any seminar, exhibition, club session, competition, or other club activity by paying the same fee or admission as is paid by a full member of the club. Honorary Life Members may vote and may hold office.
- Sec. 6.2. A Life Honorary Member has the right to also be a full member of the Club if he or she so elects, by paying current dues, with all rights and privileges of full members without foregoing his or her status as Life Honorary Member.
- Sec. 7. **Representation of the Club**. No member shall enter, in the name of the Club, in any competition, exhibition, carnival, personal appearance, etc. unless the activity is properly sanctioned by U.S. Figure Skating and the member is eligible to participate in the event, appearance or activity under the rules of U.S. Figure Skating and the rules and directives of the Portland Ice Skating Club. No person shall claim to represent the Club without the authorization of the Board, except no specific authorization is required for participation in any competition or activity sanctioned by U.S. Figure Skating and sponsored by U.S. Figure Skating or a member Club of U.S. Figure Skating. No person shall reproduce, display or distribute the logo, service mark or appellation of the Club without authorization of the Board, unless he or she is a member in good standing and has satisfied all financial obligations to the Club.
- Sec. 8. **Dues** of all classes of membership shall be determined by the Board no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the Spring Membership meeting of the Club.
- Sec. 9. **Guests**. Members shall be responsible for the conduct and fund indebtedness of their guests admitted to the Club's property. Visiting members of an out-of-town club of the U.S. Figure Skating may skate at three Club sessions free of charge each year with the permission of the President. Thereafter, the current admissions fee will be charged. Visiting skaters who are not members of any U.S. Figure Skating member club may skate at three Club sessions by paying the admission fee before membership in the Club is required.

## Article V - Annual Scholarships

Sec. 1. The Club may award annual scholarships to eligible members, subject to the availability of funds.

- Sec. 2. The Board shall determine the availability of funds and the maximum award amounts, or the criteria of scholarships by class each Club fiscal year.
- Sec. 3. There will be two classes of annual scholarships awarded by the Club, for qualifying competitions and test sessions. Full, Introductory and Collegiate members will be eligible for both awards. Adult Full members shall be eligible for qualifying competitions.
- Sec. 4. Eligibility for an annual scholarship shall be limited to current Full, Introductory and Collegiate members who have been full members since the beginning of the Club fiscal year in which the qualifying competitions and/or test sessions are skated.
- Sec. 4.3. The Board may establish conditions and criteria determining the eligibility for qualifying competitions and skating tests for receipt of scholarships.
- Sec. 5. Scholarships may also be awarded at the Board's discretion and subject to the availability of funds in recognition of extraordinary achievement. Examples of such achievement include but are not limited to: Qualifying for (and skating in) Sectional or National Championships; Adult qualifying competitors, National Development Camp and Skating International events at the invitation of U.S. Figure Skating or ISU (International Skating Union).
- Sec. 6. The budget includes a separate fund called the Jack Snyder Memorial Fund. The purpose of the Jack Snyder Memorial Fund is to provide support to skaters and officials. Monies from the Fund may be awarded to skaters and officials and will be communicated to the membership.

### **Article VI - Meetings**

- Sec. 1. There will be two regular meetings of the Membership each year; one meeting to be held in the Spring, and one meeting to be held in the Fall.
- Sec. 2. A Quorum for the transaction of business at Regular or Special meetings shall be twenty percent (20%) of the full members.
- Sec. 2.1. Voting privileges are guaranteed to full members thirteen (13) years of age or over. Twenty percent (20%) of voting members age 13 and over will be considered a majority where votes are required of the membership.
- Sec. 2.2. Absentee or virtual ballots shall be accepted at the discretion of the Board for reasons of illness or any reason deemed valid, with the electronic signature of the voting member of said ballot.

Ballots may be received electronically (via e-mail) prior to the counting of the ballots.

- Sec. 3. Special meetings may be called at the direction of the President or by the Secretary on written request of ten (10) full members in good standing. Business at Special Meetings shall be limited to that stated in the meeting notice.
- Sec. 4. Notice of Regular and Special Meetings shall be delivered electronically (via e-mail) to every member by the Secretary at least seven (7) days in advance. Thereof, except for meetings in which amendments) to these Bylaws will be considered, in which case, notice of the Regular or Special Meeting must be delivered electronically (via e-mail) at least fourteen (14) days prior

thereto.

Sec. 5. The Order of Business at regular meetings of the Board or Club shall be:

Roll call or Determination of Quorum Present

Minutes of Previous Meeting

Reports of Officers

Reports of Committees - reports may be submitted before the meeting and placed on a consent agenda

**Unfinished Business** 

**New Business** 

Election of Officers if Applicable

Adjournment

Sec. 6 All questions before the Chair at Club or Board meetings shall be decided by majority vote unless otherwise stated in these Bylaws.

Sec. 7. Any questions, previously decided by the Board, which is brought to the floor of a Club meeting will require a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote to reverse the decision of the Board. Sec. 8. "Robert's Rules of Order" shall govern all meetings of the Club and the Board when applicable and where they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws, and the rules and Bylaws of the U.S. Figure Skating Association

### **Article VII - Discipline**

Sec. 1. Any member or members having a complaint against another member for the infraction of any law or rule, other than skating rules, for rules, for conduct injurious to the welfare of the Club, may report the same in writing to the Board. Such complaint shall set forth the facts of the case, together with the names of witnesses, if any. After receiving such a complaint, a meeting of the Board shall be held within ten days. The complainant(s) and the complainee(s) shall receive at least seven (7) days written notice of such meeting and will be heard with their witness. The statements, evidence, and decision of the Board shall be reduced to writing and filed with the Secretary who shall mail copies to the complainant(s) and complainee(s). An appeal from the decision of the Board may be taken to the Club by serving the Secretary a written notice of appeal within seven (7) days thereafter. A special meeting shall thereupon be called for the consideration of the case and a two-thirds majority vote shall be necessary to reverse the decision of the Board.

#### **Article VIII - Amendments**

Sec. 1. The Board may propose amendments to these Bylaws to be acted upon at any Club meeting provided the proposed amendment(s) and the notice of the meeting will be distributed electronically (via e-mail) to all members thirty (30) days prior to the date thereof.

Sec. 2. A full member proposing amendments to these Bylaws shall submit the proposed amendment(s) to the Board, with a statement signed by at least nine (9) other full members requesting the proposed amendment(s) be considered at the next regular or at a special meeting with the date certain. The request must be received by the Secretary at least fourteen (14) days prior to the next scheduled Regular Meeting or prior to a Special Meeting. The requested amendment(s) must be placed on the agenda of the next scheduled Regular or Special Meeting by the Board.

Sec. 3. A two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the voting members thirteen (13) years and over who are present, shall be necessary for the adoption of the amendment(s) to these Bylaws.

# **Article IX - Funding Policy**

- Sec. 1. Purpose. The purpose of Portland Ice Skating Club Funding is not only to support its competitive skaters at the various qualifying levels, but also to support all of its skating club members at all levels and categories in their skating goals. Therefore, helping to enable all skaters to realize their goals, recognize, and appreciate their achievements. It should not be looked on as an "innate obligation" of the club or "special right" of the skater.
- Sec. 2. Sources of funds/revenues of the Portland Ice Skating Club, include members' dues, public support, revenues from special benefits, proceeds from Ice Crystal Classic competition, and any fundraising activity of any kind sanctioned by the Club shall go to the Portland Ice Skating Club's general operating fund account.
- Sec. 3. Distribution of Club funds/expenses by Portland Ice Skating Club restricted or unrestricted funds expenditures shall be divided into three categories:
- (1) Annual Budgeted Operating Expenses;
- (2) Mandated Expenditures for Skater Functions; and
- (3) Funding of Qualified Portland Ice Skating Club's Skaters.
- Sec. 3.1. Annual Budgeted Operating Expenses. These restricted and unrestricted expenditures represent the normal budgeted item that are required to operate the Club on an annual basis, such as: U.S. Figure Skating dues, cost of printing and postage, pins, patches, hospitality, Club sessions, Club socials, Fall and Spring Membership meetings, post office box, Club storage unit, cost of putting on all competitions, website maintenance and fundraisers.

Budgeted operating expenses need to be specifically identified, and individually itemized on Club financial statements, and formalized on a permanent ongoing basis consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles and related authoritative pronouncements. Included are Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Activities and Statement of Cash Flows showing accounting positions and results of operations for each major Club event, i.e., fundraising, major Club functions and competitions.

The first order of business annually for each new Board shall be to develop and approve the operating budget for the ensuing fiscal year beginning July 1 through June 30. The annual required elements for qualified skater funding of the current year shall be developed immediately

thereafter and will be communicated to the membership.

Sec. 3.2. Mandated Expenditures for Skater Functions. Mandated expenditures for Club functions are to provide specific targeted events such as skating seminars, sports medicine, sports psychology with the one guiding rule that these functions benefit all skaters at all levels of the Club. This will develop a broader base of Club interest in support of Club activities and fundraisers.

The current Board shall determine annually the various functions that the Club skaters can best benefit. The Club Vice President shall be the designated individual primarily involved in the coordination, promotion, and advertisement of skater functions. The mandated cost for funding these functions and activities shall remain constant on an ongoing year after basis.

Sec 3.3. Funding of qualified Club Skaters. Any skater or official receiving Portland Ice Skating Club funding shall have been a full member of Portland Ice Skating Club in good standing since the beginning of the Club fiscal year, and have complied with all requirements of Article V (Annual Scholarships) of the Bylaws of Portland Ice Skating Club, Inc.

The determination of distribution, if any, shall be made following each qualifying competition or qualified test. Eligible members who enter and skate in U.S. Figure Skating qualifying competitions may receive funding to help defray the entry fee for the first level at which they qualify. It also includes qualifying events for the U.S. Figure Skating Adult Nationals.

### **Article X**

Except as otherwise amended herein, the bylaws shall remain in full force and effect.

#### Article XI

Dissolution: Upon the winding up and dissolution of the corporation, after paying or adequately providing for the debts and obligations of the corporation, the remaining assets shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated for purposes similar to the Portland Ice Skating Club Inc., as indicated in Article II, Section 1 of its bylaws, and has established its tax exempt status under section 501(c)3 of the Internal Revenue code.

The foregoing bylaws were duly adopted by the membership of PORTLAND ICE SKATING CLUB by majority approval of the Board of Directors May (TBD), 2024

President
Printed name: Barbara Linn
Secretary
Printed name: Dany Madden

# **END** OF 2024 PISC BYLAWS

Approved by the PISC Board of Directors April 24,2024